
McDowell County Planning Board 
Regular Meeting 

10/27/2014 
Minutes 

 
 

The McDowell County Planning Board met in regular session on October 27, 2014 at 7pm. The 
meeting was held at the County Managers Conference Room located at 60, East Court Street, 
Marion, NC. 
 
Members Present: 
C.B. Edwards, Chairman 
Tommy Stamey 
Arvin Hicks 
Benny Stamey 
Bob Brendle 
Dennis Whitson 
Tony Brown 
Max Boyd, Chairman, Medical Leave 
Sam Dotson 
Dan Thornton 
 
Staff Present: 
Ronald Harmon, Board Secretary 
Phoenikx Buathier, Planning Assistant 
 
Other Present: 
Van Boyd 
Joe Hall 
 
Call to Order: 
 
Chairman C.B. Edwards called the meeting to order and announced that a quorum of members 
was present. The next item on the agenda was seating of Alternate Members, there was no 
alternates at the meeting. 
 
The next item on the agenda was approval of the October meeting agenda. Motion to approve 
was made by Arvin Hicks, second from Dan Thornton, vote taken motion carried. 
 
The next item on the agenda was approval of the September 22nd meeting minutes. Arvin Hicks 
made a comment that he was not present at the September meeting and that Dan Thornton was. 
Arvin Hicks requested that the change be made. Motion to approve minutes with the correction 
was made by Benny Stamey, second from Dan Thornton, vote taken motion carried.  
 
 



 
Van Boyd Variance Request: 
 
Ron Harmon explained that before the Board could deal with the variance request, the Planning 
Board would first have to adjourn as the Planning Board and reconvene as the Board of 
Adjustments.  
 
Chairman CB Edwards asked for a motion to adjourn as a Planning Board and reconvene as 
Board of Adjustments. Motion to adjourn as Planning Board and reconvene as Board of 
Adjustments was made by Bob Brendle, second from Vice-Chairman Dennis Whitson; vote 
taken meeting was adjourned as Planning Board and reconvened as Board of Adjustment.  
 
Ron turned the floor over to Van Boyd. Van Boyd presented pictures of the boat slips and the 
terrain of the area. Ron spoke stating that Jerry Silvers, McDowell County Building Inspector 
had drove out the road before any boat docks were installed. Van Boyd stated that they received 
the proper licensing and that it took approximately two years to construct.  
 
Ron explained that there were two variance requests to consider. The first variance request was 
for the road connecting the main land to the peninsula. Ron stated that the staff recommendation 
was to allow the variance based on the unique circumstances due to its location.  The second 
variance request was for the road that leads to the boat dock. Ron stated that the pathway appears 
to be a little wider then allowed and closer to the shoreline then allowed. Ron also stated that 
there had been visual confirmation that vehicles have accessed this pathway.  
 
Vice-Chairman Whitson suggested talking about each variance separately. Ron stated that what 
you would be approving is the use of the road and the width of the road for that subdivision 
ordinance. Ron stated that the width of the road was 10 feet and if the road does not span longer 
than 150 feet it can be less than twenty feet wide. Vice-Chairman Whitson stated that a fire truck 
should be able to make it across based on it previous uses for logging. Ron explained, that a 
variance needs to be decided because it exists and needs to be addressed. 
 
Bob Brendle asked for a motion to approve the first variance regarding the road connecting the 
main land to the peninsula, second from Tony Brown, vote taken motion approved. 
 
Van Boyd then spoke regarding the second variance about the pathway leading out to the boat 
docks. Van Boyd stated there were electrical lines out there, and that the steps that were built, 
were built to building code requirements.  
 
Vice-Chairman Whitson then asked Van Boyd if the steps were to ADA code or if it was 
constructed because of it. Van Boyd stated that the pathway was not constructed for ADA. Van 
Boyd stated that the pump dock is where the wheel chair access is provided. Vice-Chairman 
Whitson asked if ADA people could take a golf cart out to the steps and then receive assistance 
down the steps. Van Boyd stated that the ADA compliance was in the marina area and that they 
would be shuttled over to those docks if they were in a wheel chair.  
 



Benny Stamey then asked about what trees had been taken out to construct a pathway. Van Boyd 
stated that mostly stumps were removed in that area, that they were mostly white pine. Ron 
asked Van Boyd how many trees were replanted. Van Boyd stated that 30 trees were replanted. 
Van Boyd also stated that he had to go through Duke Power for approval of the construction of 
the docks. Van Boyd stated that he followed both Duke Power’s stabilization requirements and 
crescents requirements.   
 
Vice-Chairman Whitson asked when the docks were constructed. Van Boyd stated that the docks 
were constructed in 2011.  
 
Arvin Hicks asked what the Board would be approving. Benny Stamey stated that it was the 
approval of the pathway out to the docks because the pathway was located in the buffer zone 
according to the Lake James Ordinance. Van Boyd stated that the land used for the boat docks 
was not residential but commercial. Benny Stamey asked about if the steps were in violation. 
Ron stated that the steps do not violate the ordinance, and that the ordinance was for the pathway 
that runs along the shoreline.  
 
Dan Thornton asked if the Board should allow cars to access the pathway. Ron suggested that if 
the Board was going to not allow cars on the pathway to use some type of barrier to enforce that.  
 
Van Boyd then spoke about their requirement to appropriately maintain the pathway. Joe Hall 
also spoke about the maintaining of the road, discussing that they trimmed trees, put down mulch 
yearly and maintained the lighting system. Joe Hall stated that to maintain the pathway, 
maintenance would need to access it with a vehicle.  
 
Vice-Chairman Whitson stated that it was twenty feet from the shoreline and that it was in the 
buffer. Vice-Chairman Whitson stated that this was a unique situation because it was a 
commercial area, handicapped people did use it, and that it had to be there to access the docks. 
Vice-Chairman Whitson suggested limiting vehicle access and implementing bollards on the 
pathway to ensure vehicles could not access the pathway. Vice-Chairman Whitson also 
suggested removable bollards so that maintenance could access the pathway to maintain it. Ron 
also stated that removable bollards were a good idea in case emergency maintenance needed to 
access that area.  
 
Vice-Chairman Whitson stated that a variance for maintaining the commercial property was 
necessary because the pathway is within the buffer zone.  
 
Benny Stamey asked if the pathway was built for handicap persons in a wheel chair. Van Boyd 
responded that they were not built for handicapped persons in wheel chairs, but that other types 
of handicapped persons used the pathway using such things as golf carts to access the boat docks 
because some were pretty far out.  
 
Vice-Chairman Whitson made a motion to approve pathway stating, “the path can continue, use 
as is, with the addition of installing a removable bollards, with the necessary distance to restrict 
use by a licensed motor vehicle.  With the exception of permitted use from maintenance or 



emergency traffic. Golf cart or similar use allowed”. Motioned seconded by Bob Brendle, no 
more discussion, vote taken motion approved. 
 
Other Business: 
 
Ron asked for a motion to adjourn as a Board of Adjustments and reconvene as Planning Board. 
Motion to adjourn as Board of Adjustments and reconvene as Planning Board was made by 
Benny Stamey, second from Chairman Edwards, vote taken meeting was adjourned as Board of 
Adjustments and reconvened as Planning Board. 
 
Ron stated that there was nothing on the agenda for the November meeting and that the 
December meeting is traditionally cancelled. Ron stated that if anything came up in November 
that he would notify the board and a November meeting would be held. Ron asked if the board 
would like to cancel the December meeting. Dan Thornton motioned to cancel the December 
meeting, seconded by Tony Brown, vote taken motion approved.  
 
With no further business or discussion Chairman Edwards asked for a motion to adjourn. Motion 
to adjourn was made by Benny Stamey, second from Sam Dotson, vote taken meeting was 
adjourned.  
 
 
 
 
 
 


